ALLIED CAPITAL CORP Form 497 September 30, 2004 Prospectus Supplement (To Prospectus dated September 14, 2004) Filed Pursuant to Rule 497 Registration Statement No. 333-113671

3,000,000 Shares

Common Stock

We are offering for sale 3,000,000 shares of our common stock. Our common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange (the NYSE) under the symbol ALD. The last reported sales price of our common stock on the NYSE on September 29, 2004, was \$25.11 per share.

You should review the information, including the risk of leverage, set forth under Risk Factors on page 10 of the accompanying prospectus before investing in our common stock.

	Per Share	Total
Public offering price	\$25.00	\$75,000,000
Underwriting discount	\$ 1.25	\$ 3,750,000
Proceeds to Allied Capital Corporation(1)	\$23.75	\$71,250,000

(1) Before deducting expenses payable by us estimated to be \$470,000.

Please read this prospectus supplement, and the accompanying prospectus, before investing, and keep it for future reference. The prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus contain important information about us. The Securities and Exchange Commission (the SEC) maintains an Internet website (http://www.sec.gov) that contains other information about us.

We have granted the underwriters a 30-day option to purchase up to 450,000 additional shares of common stock to cover over-allotments. If the underwriters exercise the option in full, the public offering price, the underwriting discount and proceeds to us would be \$86,250,000, \$4,312,500 and \$81,937,500, respectively.

Neither the SEC nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or passed upon the adequacy or accuracy of this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

The shares of common stock will be ready for delivery on or about October 5, 2004.

Joint Book-Running Managers

Banc of America Securities LLC

Deutsche Bank Securities

JMP Securities

The date of this prospectus supplement is September 29, 2004.

You should rely only on the information contained in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus. We have not, and the underwriters have not, authorized any other person to provide you with different information. If anyone provides you with different or inconsistent information, you should not rely on it. We are not, and the underwriters are not, making an offer to sell these securities in any jurisdiction where the offer or sale is not permitted. You should assume that the information appearing in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus is accurate only as of their respective dates. Our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects may have changed since those dates.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Prospectus Supplement

	Page Number
Fees and Expenses	S-1
Use of Proceeds	S-2
Underwriting	S-3
Legal Matters	S-5

Prospectus

Prospectus Summary	1
Fees and Expenses	6
Selected Condensed Consolidated Financial Data	7
Where You Can Find Additional Information	9
Risk Factors	10
Use of Proceeds	18
Price Range of Common Stock and Distributions	19
Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of	
Operations	20
Senior Securities	60
Business	64
Portfolio Companies	78
Determination of Net Asset Value	86
Management	89
Compensation of Executive Officers and Directors	95
Control Persons and Principal Holders of Securities	101
Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions	103
Tax Status	104
Certain Government Regulations	108
Dividend Reinvestment Plan	113
Description of Capital Stock	113
Plan of Distribution	120
Legal Matters	121
Safekeeping, Transfer and Dividend Paying Agent and Registrar	121
Brokerage Allocation and Other Practices	122
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm	122
Notice Regarding Arthur Andersen LLP	122
Index to Consolidated Financial Statements	F-1

In this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus, unless otherwise indicated, Allied Capital, we, us or our refer to Allied Capital Corporation and its subsidiaries.

Information contained in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus may contain forward-looking statements, which can be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology such as may, will, expect, intend, anticipate, estimate, or continue or the nega thereof or other variations thereon or comparable terminology. The matters described in Risk Factors in the accompanying prospectus and certain other factors noted throughout this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus constitute cautionary statements identifying important factors with respect to any such forward-looking statements, including certain risks and uncertainties, that could cause actual results to differ materially from those in such forward-looking statements.

(ii)

FEES AND EXPENSES

This table describes the various costs and expenses that an investor of our common stock will bear directly or indirectly.

Shareholders Transaction Expenses	
Sales load (as a percentage of offering price) ⁽¹⁾	5.0%
Dividend reinvestment plan fees ⁽²⁾	None
Annual Expenses (as a percentage of consolidated net assets	
attributable to common shares)(3)	
Operating expenses ⁽⁴⁾	4.6%
Interest payments on borrowed funds ⁽⁵⁾	4.0%
Total annual expenses ⁽⁶⁾⁽⁷⁾	8.6%

- (1) Represents the underwriting discounts and commissions with respect to the shares sold by Allied Capital in this offering.
- (2) The expenses of our dividend reinvestment plan are included in Operating expenses. We do not have a stock purchase plan. The participants in the dividend reinvestment plan will bear a pro rata share of brokerage commissions incurred with respect to open market purchases, if any. See Dividend Reinvestment Plan in the accompanying prospectus.
- (3) Consolidated net assets attributable to common stock equals net assets (*i.e.*, total consolidated assets less total consolidated liabilities and preferred stock), which at June 30, 2004 was \$1.9 billion.
- (4) Operating expenses represent our estimated operating expenses for the year ending December 31, 2004, excluding interest on indebtedness. This percentage for the year ended December 31, 2003, was 3.1%.
- (5) The Interest payments on borrowed funds represents our estimated interest expenses for the year ending December 31, 2004. We had outstanding borrowings of \$1,058.8 million at June 30, 2004. This percentage for the year ended December 31, 2003, was 4.0%. See Risk Factors in the accompanying prospectus.
- (6) Total annual expenses as a percentage of consolidated net assets attributable to common stock are higher than the total annual expenses percentage would be for a company that is not leveraged. We borrow money to leverage our net assets and increase our total assets. The SEC requires that the Total annual expenses percentage be calculated as a percentage of net assets, rather than the total assets, including assets that have been funded with borrowed monies. If the Total annual expenses percentage were calculated instead as a percentage of consolidated total assets, our Total annual expenses would be 5.2% of consolidated total assets.
- (7) The holders of shares of our common stock (and not the holders of our debt securities or preferred stock, if any) indirectly bear the cost associated with our annual expenses.

Example

The following example, required by the SEC, demonstrates the projected dollar amount of total cumulative expenses that would be incurred over various periods with respect to a hypothetical investment in us. In calculating the following expense amounts, we assumed we would have no additional leverage and that our operating expenses would remain at the levels set forth in the table above.

	1 Year	3 Years	5 Years	10 Years
You would pay the following expenses on a \$1,000 investment, assuming a 5.0% annual return	\$ 86	\$258	\$429	\$854

Although the example assumes (as required by the SEC) a 5.0% annual return, our performance will vary and may result in a return of greater or less than 5.0%. In addition, while the example assumes reinvestment of all dividends and distributions at net asset value, participants

in the dividend reinvestment plan may receive shares of common stock that we issue at or above net asset value or purchased by the administrator of the dividend reinvestment plan, at the market price in effect at the time, which may be higher than, at, or below net asset value. See Dividend Reinvestment Plan in the accompanying prospectus.

The example should not be considered a representation of future expenses, and the actual expenses may be greater or less than those shown.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds from the sale of the shares of our common stock, after deducting estimated expenses of this offering, are estimated to be \$70.8 million. We intend to use the net proceeds from selling our common stock to reduce borrowings under our revolving line of credit. Amounts repaid under our revolving line of credit will remain available for future borrowing. At September 29, 2004, the interest rate on our revolving line of credit was 3.3% and there was approximately \$353.0 million outstanding. This revolving line of credit terminates in April 2005 and may be extended on substantially similar terms for one additional year at our option.

S-2

UNDERWRITING

We are offering the shares of our common stock described in this prospectus through the underwriters named below. Banc of America Securities LLC and Deutsche Bank Securities Inc. are acting as joint book-running managers of the offering and representatives of the underwriters. We have entered into an underwriting agreement with the underwriters. Subject to the terms and conditions of the underwriting agreement, each of the underwriters has severally agreed to purchase the number of shares of common stock listed next to its name in the following table:

Number of shares
1,350,000
1,350,000
300,000
3,000,000

The underwriting agreement provides that the obligation of the underwriters to purchase the shares offered by us is subject to some conditions. The underwriters are obligated to purchase all of the shares offered by us, if any of the shares are purchased.

This offering of the shares is made for delivery when, as and if accepted by the underwriters and subject to prior sale and to withdrawal, cancellation or modification of this offering without notice. The underwriters reserve the right to reject an order for the purchase of shares in whole or in part.

We have agreed to indemnify the underwriters against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act, and to contribute to payments the underwriters may be required to make in respect of these liabilities.

Commissions and Discounts

The underwriters propose to offer the shares to the public initially at the public offering price set forth on the cover of this prospectus supplement and to dealers at that price, less a selling concession of \$0.75 per share. After the offering, the public price may be changed by the underwriters.

The following table shows the per share and total underwriting discounts and commissions to be paid to the underwriters by us assuming both no exercise and full exercise of the underwriters option to purchase additional shares.

	No Exercise of Option	Full Exercise of Option		
Per share	\$ 1.25	\$ 1.25		
Total	\$3,750,000	\$4,312,500		

We estimate that the total expenses of this offering, which will be paid by us, excluding the underwriting discounts and commissions, will be approximately \$470,000.

Overallotment Option

The underwriters have the option to purchase up to 450,000 additional shares of common stock from us at the same price they are paying for the 3,000,000 shares offered hereby. The underwriters may purchase additional shares only to cover overallotments made in connection with this offering and only within 30 days after the date of this prospectus supplement. The underwriters will offer any additional shares that they purchase on the terms described in the preceding section.

No Sale of Similar Securities

We and certain of our executive officers have agreed not to offer, sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of, or to engage in certain hedging and derivative transactions with respect to, the common stock or any securities convertible into or exchangeable for shares of common stock for a period of 60 days after the date of this prospectus supplement without first obtaining the written consent of Banc of America Securities LLC and Deutsche Bank Securities Inc., as representatives of the underwriters, except in certain limited circumstances, including (i) our additional issuance of equity securities through privately negotiated transactions that may or may not involve an underwriter, whether or not registered with the SEC, aggregating not more than \$50 million and (ii) our additional issuance of securities as all or part of the consideration paid for by us in connection with the acquisition of assets or securities of a third-party entity.

Price Stabilization and Short Positions

In connection with this offering, the underwriters may purchase and sell shares of our common stock in the open market. These transactions may include stabilizing transactions, short sales and purchases to cover positions created by short sales. Stabilizing transactions consist of bids or purchases made for the purpose of preventing or retarding a decline in the market price of our common stock while this offering is in progress. Short sales involve the sale by the underwriters of a greater number of shares than they are required to purchase in this offering. Short sales may be either covered short sales or naked short sales. Covered short sales are sales made in an amount not greater than the underwriters over-allotment option to purchase additional shares in this offering. The underwriters may close out any covered short position by either exercising their over-allotment option or purchasing shares in the open market. In determining the source of shares to close out the covered short position, the underwriters will consider, among other things, the price of shares available for purchase in the open market as compared to the price at which they may purchase shares through the over-allotment option. Naked short sales are sales in excess of the over-allotment option. The underwriters must close out any naked short position by purchasing shares in the open market. A naked short position is more likely to be created if the underwriters are concerned there may be downward pressure on the price of shares in the open market after pricing that could adversely affect investors who purchase in this offering.

We have been advised by the representatives of the underwriters that these transactions may be effected on the NYSE or otherwise and, if commenced, may be discontinued at any time. Similar to other purchase activities, these activities may have the effect of raising or maintaining the market price of our shares or preventing a decline in the market price of our shares. As a result, the price of our shares may be higher than the price that might otherwise exist in the open market.

S-4

Settlement

The underwriters expect to deliver the shares through the facilities of The Depository Trust Company in New York, New York, on or about October 5, 2004. At that time, the underwriters will pay us for the shares in immediately available funds. For the third quarter of 2004, our Board of Directors declared a dividend of \$0.57 per common share. The third quarter dividend is payable on September 30, 2004, with a record date of September 10, 2004. Accordingly, the shares offered by this prospectus supplement will not be entitled to the third quarter dividend.

Other Relationships

In the ordinary course of business, the underwriters and/or their affiliates have in the past performed, and may continue to perform, commercial banking, financial advisory and investment banking services for us for which they have received, or may receive, customary compensation. Affiliates of Banc of America Securities LLC and Deutsche Bank Securities Inc. are members of the lending syndicate for our unsecured revolving line of credit. JMP Securities LLC provides portfolio valuation services to us.

Other Information

This offering is being conducted in compliance with Rule 2810 of the Conduct Rules of the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. Because 10% or more of the net offering proceeds may be paid to affiliates of Banc of America Securities LLC and Deutsche Bank Securities Inc., the offering will also be conducted in compliance with NASD Rule 2710(h).

The address for Banc of America Securities LLC, 9 West 57th Street, 21st Floor, New York, NY 10019. The address for Deutsche Bank Securities Inc. is 60 Wall Street, 4th Floor, New York, NY 10005. The address for JMP Securities LLC is 600 Montgomery Street, Suite 1100, San Francisco, CA 94111.

LEGAL MATTERS

Certain legal matters with respect to the validity of the shares of common stock we are offering will be passed upon for us by Sutherland Asbill & Brennan LLP, Washington, D.C. Certain legal matters related to the offering will be passed upon for the underwriters by Davis Polk & Wardwell, New York, New York.

PROSPECTUS

20,000,000 Shares

Common Stock

We are an internally managed closed-end, non-diversified management investment company that has elected to be regulated as a business development company under the Investment Company Act of 1940.

Our investment objective is to achieve current income and capital gains. We seek to achieve our investment objective by investing in companies in a variety of industries, non-investment grade commercial mortgage-backed securities, and collateralized debt obligation bonds and preferred shares. No assurances can be given that we will continue to achieve our objective.

Please read this prospectus, and the accompanying prospectus supplement, if any, before investing, and keep it for future reference. It contains important information about us. The SEC maintains an Internet website (http://www.sec.gov) that contains other information about us.

We may offer, from time to time, up to 20,000,000 shares of our common stock in one or more offerings.

The shares of common stock may be offered at prices and on terms to be described in one or more supplements to this prospectus. The offering price per share of our common stock less any underwriting commissions or discounts will not be less than the net asset value per share of our common stock at the time we make the offering.

Our common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol ALD. As of September 13, 2004, the last reported sale price on the New York Stock Exchange for the common stock was \$25.48.

You should review the information, including the risk of leverage, set forth under Risk Factors on page 10 of this prospectus before investing in our common stock.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or passed upon the adequacy or accuracy of this prospectus. Any representations to the contrary is a criminal offense.

This prospectus may not be used to consummate sales of shares of common stock unless accompanied by a prospectus supplement.

September 14, 2004

We have not authorized any dealer, salesman or other person to give any information or to make any representation other than those contained in this prospectus or any accompanying supplement to this prospectus. You must not rely upon any information or representation not contained in this prospectus or the accompanying prospectus supplement as if we had authorized it. This prospectus and any prospectus supplement do not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of any offer to buy any security other than the registered securities to which they relate, nor do they constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy any securities in any jurisdiction to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such an offer or solicitation in such jurisdiction. The information contained in this prospectus and any prospectus supplement is accurate as of the dates on their covers.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
Prospectus Summary	1
Fees and Expenses	6
Selected Condensed Consolidated Financial Data	7
Where You Can Find Additional Information	9
Risk Factors	10
Use of Proceeds	18
Price Range of Common Stock and Distributions	19
Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and	
Results of Operations	20
Senior Securities	60
Business	64
Portfolio Companies	78
Determination of Net Asset Value	86
Management	89
Compensation of Executive Officers and Directors	95
Control Persons and Principal Holders of Securities	101
Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions	103
Tax Status	104
Certain Government Regulations	108
Dividend Reinvestment Plan	113
Description of Capital Stock	113
Plan of Distribution	120
Legal Matters	121
Safekeeping, Transfer and Dividend Paying Agent and Registrar	121
Brokerage Allocation and Other Practices	122
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm	122
Notice Regarding Arthur Andersen LLP	122
Index to Consolidated Financial Statements	F-1

ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS

This prospectus is part of a registration statement that we have filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission using the shelf registration process. Under the shelf registration process, we may offer, from time to time, up to 20,000,000 shares of our common stock on the terms to be determined at the time of the offering. Shares of our common stock may be offered at prices and on terms described in one or more supplements to this prospectus. This prospectus provides you with a general description of the shares of our common stock that we may offer. Each time we use this prospectus to offer shares of our common stock, we will provide a prospectus supplement that will contain specific information about the terms of that offering. The prospectus supplement may also add, update or change information contained in this prospectus. Please carefully read this prospectus and any prospectus supplement together with the additional information described under Where You Can Find Additional Information in the Prospectus Summary and Risk Factors sections before you make an investment decision.

PROSPECTUS SUMMARY

The following summary contains basic information about this offering. It may not contain all the information that is important to an investor. For a more complete understanding of this offering, we encourage you to read this entire prospectus and the documents that are referred to in this prospectus.

In this prospectus or any accompanying prospectus supplement, unless otherwise indicated, Allied Capital, we, us or our refer to Allied Capital Corporation and its subsidiaries.

BUSINESS (Page 64)

As a business development company, we are in the private equity business. We provide long-term debt and equity capital. We have participated in the private equity business for over 40 years and have financed thousands of companies nationwide. Our investment objective is to achieve current income and capital gains.

We believe the private equity capital markets are important to the growth of small and middle market companies because such companies often have difficulty accessing the public debt and equity capital markets because their capital needs are too small to be attractive to the public markets, or because they are in need of long-term growth capital, which banks do not generally provide. We believe that we are well positioned to be a source of capital for such companies.

Our investment activity is primarily focused in three areas:

Lending subordinated debt with or without equity features to middle market companies (mezzanine investing),

Buying controlling equity stakes in middle market companies (buyout investing), and

Investing in non-investment grade classes of commercial mortgage-backed securities (CMBS) and collateralized debt obligations (CDOs).

Our investments are long-term in nature, privately negotiated, and no readily available market exists for them. This makes our investments highly illiquid.

As a private equity investor, we spend significant time and effort identifying, structuring, performing due diligence, monitoring, valuing and ultimately exiting our investments. Each investment is subject to an extensive due diligence process. It is not uncommon for a single investment to take from two months to a year to complete, depending on the complexity of the transaction.

Our private finance portfolio is primarily composed of mezzanine loans and equity securities. This capital is used by portfolio companies to fund growth, acquisitions, buyouts, recapitalizations, note purchases, bridge financings, or other types of financings. We generally target companies in less cyclical industries with, among other things, high return on invested capital, management teams with meaningful equity ownership, well-constructed balance sheets, and that have the ability to generate free cash flow.

Our primary commercial real estate investments are in the non-investment grade classes of CMBS bonds. We generally invest at the initial issuance of the CMBS, and are able to review the underlying collateral of mortgage loans as if we were making an initial decision to fund such loans and to determine if we want to exclude any loans that do not meet our credit, collateral, structural or other standards. We are also able to negotiate to acquire the securities at significant discounts from their face value. In addition to our CMBS investments, we have invested in the bonds and preferred shares of CDOs.

Our investments are typically structured to provide recurring cash flow in the form of interest income to us as the investor. In addition to earning interest income, we may structure our investments

to generate income from management, diligence, structuring, or other fees. Our total return may be enhanced through capital gains.

As a private equity investor, we believe that we have certain competitive advantages including:

Access to public equity markets generally gives us a lower cost of capital than that of other private equity funds, and

Our capital structure is perpetual in nature and may enable us to be a better long-term partner for our portfolio companies than other private equity funds that may have a limited life.

We have elected to be treated as a regulated investment company under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, which we refer to as the Code. Our status as a regulated investment company generally eliminates a corporate level income tax on taxable income we timely distribute to our stockholders as dividends, if certain requirements are met. See Tax Status . We pay regular quarterly dividends based upon an estimate of annual taxable income. Since 1963, our portfolio has generally provided sufficient ordinary taxable income and net capital gains to sustain or grow our dividends over time.

We are a Maryland corporation and a closed-end, non-diversified management investment company that has elected to be regulated as a business development company under the Investment Company Act of 1940, which we refer to as the 1940 Act.

As a business development company, we are required to meet certain regulatory tests, the most significant relating to our investments and borrowings. A business development company is required to invest at least 70% of its assets in eligible portfolio companies. A business development company must also maintain a coverage ratio of assets to senior securities of at least 200%. See Certain Government Regulations.

Our executive offices are located at 1919 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Washington, DC, 20006 and our telephone number is (202) 331-1112. In addition, we have regional offices in New York, Chicago and Los Angeles.

Our Internet website address is *www.alliedcapital.com*. Information contained on our website is not incorporated by reference into this prospectus and you should not consider information contained on our website to be part of this prospectus.

Our common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol ALD.

DETERMINATION OF

NET ASSET VALUE (Page 86)

Our portfolio investments are generally recorded at fair value as determined in good faith by our Board of Directors in the absence of readily available public market values. At June 30, 2004, portfolio investments recorded at fair value were approximately 87% of our total assets.

Pursuant to the requirements of the 1940 Act, we value substantially all of our portfolio investments at fair value as determined in good faith by the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis. Since there is typically no readily available market value for the investments in our portfolio, our Board of Directors determines in good faith the fair value of these portfolio investments pursuant to a valuation policy and a consistently applied valuation process.

There is no single standard for determining fair value in good faith. As a result, determining fair value requires that judgment be applied to the specific facts and circumstances of each portfolio investment while employing a consistently applied valuation process for the types of investments we make. Unlike banks, we are not permitted to provide a general

reserve for anticipated loan losses. Instead we are required to specifically value each individual investment and record unrealized depreciation for an investment that we believe has become impaired including where collection of a loan or realization of an equity security is doubtful or when the enterprise value of the company does not currently support the cost of our debt or equity investment. Enterprise value means the entire value of the company to a potential buyer including the sum of the values of all debt and equity securities used to capitalize the enterprise at a point in time. Conversely, we will record unrealized appreciation if we believe that the underlying portfolio company has appreciated in value and, therefore, our equity security has also appreciated in value. Without a readily available market value and because of the inherent uncertainty of valuation, the fair value of our investments determined in good faith by the Board of Directors may differ significantly from the values that would have been used had a ready market existed for the investments, and the differences could be material.

We adjust quarterly the valuation of our portfolio to reflect the change in the value of each investment in our portfolio. Any changes in value are recorded in our statement of operations as net change in unrealized appreciation or depreciation.

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION (Page 120)

We may offer, from time to time, up to 20,000,000 shares of our common stock, on terms to be determined at the time of the offering.

Shares of our common stock may be offered at prices and on terms described in one or more supplements to this prospectus. The offering price per share of our common stock less any underwriting commission or discount will not be less than the net asset value per share of our common stock at the time we make the offering.

Our shares of common stock may be offered directly to one or more purchasers, through agents designated from time to time by us, or to or through underwriters or dealers. The supplement to this prospectus relating to the offering will identify any agents or underwriters involved in the sale of our shares of common stock, and will set forth any applicable purchase price, fee and commission or discount arrangement or the basis upon which such amount may be calculated.

We may not sell shares of common stock pursuant to this prospectus without delivering a prospectus supplement describing the method and terms of the offering of such shares.

USE OF PROCEEDS (Page 18)

We intend to use the net proceeds from selling shares of common stock for general corporate purposes, which includes investments in the debt or equity securities of primarily private companies, non-investment grade commercial mortgage-backed securities or the bonds and preferred shares of collateralized debt obligations, repayment of indebtedness, acquisitions and other general corporate purposes. The supplement to this prospectus relating to an offering will more fully identify the use of the proceeds from such offering.

PRICE RANGE OF COMMON STOCK AND DISTRIBUTIONS (Page 19)

We intend to pay quarterly dividends to holders of our common stock. The amount of our quarterly dividends is determined by our Board of Directors on a quarterly basis.

3

DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN (Page 113)

We maintain an opt in dividend reinvestment plan for our common shareholders. As a result, if our Board of Directors declares a dividend, then our shareholders that have not opted in to our dividend reinvestment plan will receive cash dividends. New shareholders must notify our transfer agent in writing if they wish to enroll in the dividend reinvestment plan.

RISK FACTORS (Page 10)

Investment in our shares of common stock involves a number of significant risks relating to our business and our investment objective that you should consider before purchasing our shares of common stock.

Our portfolio of investments is generally illiquid. Our portfolio includes securities primarily issued by private companies. These investments may involve a high degree of business and financial risk; they are illiquid, and may not produce current returns or capital gains. If we were forced to immediately liquidate some or all of the investments in the portfolio, the proceeds of such liquidation would be significantly less than the current value of such investments. We may be required to liquidate some or all of our portfolio investments to meet our debt service obligations or in the event we are required to fulfill our obligations under agreements pursuant to which we guarantee the repayment of indebtedness by third parties.

An economic slowdown may affect the ability of a portfolio company to engage in a liquidity event, which is a transaction that involves the sale or recapitalization of all or part of a portfolio company. These conditions could lead to financial losses in our portfolio and a decrease in our revenues, net income and assets. Numerous other factors may affect a borrower s ability to repay its loan, including the failure to meet its business plan, a downturn in its industry or negative economic conditions.

We purchase controlling equity stakes in companies and our total debt and equity investment in controlled companies may be significant individually or in the aggregate. As a result, if a significant investment in one or more controlled companies fails to perform as expected, our financial results could be more negatively affected and the magnitude of the loss could be more significant than if we had made smaller investments in more companies.

We may not borrow money unless we maintain asset coverage for indebtedness of at least 200% which may affect returns to shareholders. We borrow funds to make investments. As a result, we are exposed to the risks of leverage, which may be considered a speculative investment technique. Borrowings, also known as leverage, magnify the potential for gain and loss on amounts invested and therefore increase the risks associated with investing in our securities.

A large number of entities and individuals compete for the same kind of investment opportunities as we do. Increased competition would make it more difficult for us to purchase or originate investments at attractive prices. As a result of this competition, sometimes we may be precluded from making otherwise attractive investments.

Our business of making private equity investments and positioning them for liquidity events also may be affected by current and future market conditions. The absence of an active senior lending environment may slow the amount of private equity investment activity generally. As a result, the pace of our investment activity may slow.

To maintain our status as a business development company, we must not acquire any assets other than qualifying assets unless, at the time of and after giving effect to such acquisition, at least 70% of our total assets are qualifying assets.

4

We may not be able to pay dividends and failure to qualify as a regulated investment company for tax purposes could have a material adverse effect on our total return, if any.

Also, we are subject to certain risks associated with valuing our portfolio, investing in non-investment grade commercial mortgage-backed securities and collateralized debt obligations, changing interest rates, accessing additional capital, fluctuating financial results, and operating in a regulated environment.

Our common stock price may be volatile due to market factors that may be beyond our control.

CERTAIN ANTI-TAKEOVER

PROVISIONS (Page 116)

Our charter and bylaws, as well as certain statutory and regulatory requirements, contain certain provisions that may have the effect of discouraging a third party from making an acquisition proposal for Allied Capital. These anti-takeover provisions may inhibit a change in control in circumstances that could give the holders of our common stock the opportunity to realize a premium over the market price for our common stock.

5

FEES AND EXPENSES

This table describes the various costs and expenses that an investor in our shares of common stock will bear directly or indirectly.

Shareholder Transaction Expenses	
Sales load (as a percentage of offering price) ⁽¹⁾	%
Dividend reinvestment plan fees ⁽²⁾	None
Annual Expenses (as a percentage of consolidated net assets	
attributable to common stock)(3)	
Operating expenses ⁽⁴⁾	4.4%
Interest payments on borrowed funds ⁽⁵⁾	4.0%
Total annual expenses ⁽⁶⁾⁽⁷⁾	8.4%

- (1) In the event that the shares of common stock to which this prospectus relates are sold to or through underwriters, a corresponding prospectus supplement will disclose the applicable sales load.
- (2) The expenses of our dividend reinvestment plan are included in Operating expenses. We do not have a stock purchase plan. The participants in the dividend reinvestment plan will bear a pro rata share of brokerage commissions incurred with respect to open market purchases or sales, if any. See Dividend Reinvestment Plan.
- (3) Consolidated net assets attributable to common stock equals net assets (*i.e.*, total consolidated assets less total consolidated liabilities), which at June 30, 2004, was \$1.9 billion.
- (4) Operating expenses represent our estimated operating expenses for the year ending December 31, 2004, excluding interest on indebtedness. This percentage of consolidated net assets for the year ended December 31, 2003, was 3.1%.
- (5) The Interest payments on borrowed funds represents our estimated interest expenses for the year ending December 31, 2004. We had outstanding borrowings of \$1,058.8 million at June 30, 2004. This percentage for the year ended December 31, 2003, was 4.0%. See Risk Factors.
- (6) Total annual expenses as a percentage of consolidated net assets attributable to common stock are higher than the total annual expenses percentage would be for a company that is not leveraged. We borrow money to leverage our net assets and increase our total assets. The SEC requires that Total annual expenses percentage be calculated as a percentage of *net* assets, rather than the total assets, including assets that have been funded with borrowed monies. If the Total annual expenses percentage were calculated instead as a percentage of consolidated total assets, our Total annual expenses would be 5.0% of consolidated total assets.
- (7) The holders of shares of our common stock (and not the holders of our debt securities or preferred stock, if any) indirectly bear the cost associated with our annual expenses.

Example

The following example, required by the SEC, demonstrates the projected dollar amount of total cumulative expenses that would be incurred over various periods with respect to a hypothetical investment in us. In calculating the following expense amounts, we assumed we would have no additional leverage and that our operating expenses would remain at the levels set forth in the table above. In the event that shares to which this prospectus relates are sold to or through underwriters, a corresponding prospectus supplement will restate this example to reflect the applicable sales load.

	1 Year	3 Years	5 Years	10 Years
You would pay the following expenses on a \$1,000 investment, assuming a 5.0% annual return	\$ 84	\$252	\$420	\$840

Although the example assumes (as required by the SEC) a 5.0% annual return, our performance will vary and may result in a return of greater or less than 5.0%. In addition, while the example assumes reinvestment of all dividends and distributions at net asset value, participants in the dividend reinvestment plan may receive shares of common stock that we issue at or above net asset value or are purchased by the administrator of the dividend reinvestment plan, at the market price in effect at the time, which may be higher than, at, or below net asset value.

The example should not be considered a representation of future expenses, and the actual expenses

may be greater or less than those shown.

SELECTED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

You should read the condensed consolidated financial information below with the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto included in this prospectus. Financial information at and for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, has been derived from our financial statements that were audited by KPMG LLP. Financial information at and for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999, has been derived from our financial statements that were audited by Arthur Andersen LLP. For important information about Arthur Andersen LLP, see the section entitled Notice Regarding Arthur Andersen LLP. Quarterly financial information is derived from unaudited financial data, but in the opinion of management, reflects all adjustments (consisting only of normal recurring adjustments) that are necessary to present fairly the results of such interim periods. Interim results at and for the six months ended June 30, 2004, are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the year ending December 31, 2004. See Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations on page 20 for more information.

	Six Months Ended June 30,		Year Ended December 31,				
(in thousands, except per share data)	2004	2003	2003	2002	2001	2000	1999
except per share data)	(unau	dited)					
Operating Data:							
Interest and related portfolio income:							
Interest and dividends	\$147,712	\$132,658	\$290,719	\$264,042	\$240,464	\$182,307	\$121,112
Loan prepayment premiums and premiums from loan dispositions	4,017	2,758	8,172	2,776	2,504	16,138	14,284
Fees and other income	17,536	14,928	30,338	43,110	46,142	13,144	5,744
Total interest and related							
portfolio income	169,265	150,344	329,229	309,928	289,110	211,589	141,140
Expenses:							
Interest	37,096	37,280	77,233	70,443	65,104	57,412	34,860
Employee	17,893	17,379	36,945	33,126	29,656	26,025	22,889
Individual performance award	6,382						